
1 
 

Eastern Shore of Virginia Tourism Commission 
Meeting Minutes  
May 24, 2017 at 2:00 p.m. 
25‐A Market Street, Onancock, Virginia 23417 
 
Commissioners in Attendance  
Larry LeMond, Northampton Cty Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman 
Steve Potts, Bill’s Restaurant, Vice‐Chairman 
Paige Addison, CBBT 
Carol Evans, Cape Charles House B&B 
Laura Belle Gordy, Accomack Cty Board of Supervisors 
 
Staff Present 
Kerry Allison, Executive Director 
Laurie Chamberlain, Operations Specialist 
Sarah Barban, Content Producer 

Mary Lena Mears, Welcome Center Manager 
Allan Burns, Industry Relations Manager 
 
Guests Present 
Elizabeth Dodd, Northampton County Chamber of 
Commerce 
Karen Rush‐Monroe, Onancock Business and Civic 
Association 
Christine Brady, Broadwater student 
Evelyn Shotwell, Chincoteague Chamber of Commerce 
Russel Jones, Town of Onancock 
Cherron Davis, VTC  New Church Welcome Center 
Caroline Bott, Accomack‐Northampton Planning District 
Commission  
Sherry Gift, Onancock resident 
Clarice MacGarvey, Town of Exmore 
 

 
 
1. Call to Order 

 LeMond called the meeting to order at 2:05 p.m. He noted that a closed session held prior to the regular board 
meeting began at 12:15 p.m. and ended at 1:55 p.m., to discuss matters pursuant to VA Code Section 3711 A(1) 
and that all board members certified that no other issues were discussed.   LeMond announced a change to the 
agenda, that rather than discussing the budget Addison would make a presentation to the commission.  
 

2. Consent Agenda 

 LeMond asked for a motion to approve the consent agenda and financials.  Gordy made a motion, Evans 
seconded and the consent agenda was approved unanimously. 
 

3. Public Participation 

 Addison introduced Brady, a Broadwater senior who was doing a career week at Chesapeake Bay Bridge‐Tunnel.  

 Rush‐Monroe introduced herself as a member of the Onancock Business and Civic Association 

 Shotwell explained there were several ribbon cuttings and Business After Hours events scheduled on 
Chincoteague. Shotwell also said the chamber had been contacted by Paula Deen to include the Chincoteague 
Oyster Festival in an article.  

 Jones announced that the town still didn’t have an Army Corps of Engineers permit for slips at the harbor. Jones 
also reported that a new reserve unit would be coming into the armory in Onancock. It would be an engineering 
detachment and they would bring equipment that would allow them to work on town projects.  

 Bott explained that the ANPDC was in the process of merging two regional economic development plans. The 
Arts, Entertainment, Recreation and Visitor Industries subcommittee met in April and Bott handed out copies of 
the work plan that was created. Bott also announced that the next meeting of the Economic Development 
Committee would be June 6 at 3 p.m. at the Eastern Shore Community College.  

 Dodd said numbers were up in Cape Charles and it was going to be a big Memorial Day for the town. Dodd also 
said C‐Pier at the Oyster Farm Marina had been redone and was very nice.  

 Davis announced numbers were up for the year. Davis said she was happy to see more events on the Eastern 
Shore because it gave people more of a reason to visit.  

 Gift explained she was new to the area and hoped to find out what was going on in Onancock.  

 MacGarvey thanked the commission staff for coming to tour Exmore. She also announced three new businesses 
had opened in Exmore. Exmore was also working to bring more events to town, she said.  

 



2 
 

4.  Welcome Center Report 

 Mears said numbers were up about four percent for April year over year. She also reported that staff had two 
great fam tours.  
 

5. Industry Relations Report 

 Burns announced that The Ropewalk in Chincoteague was open and that the Oyster Farm had expanded their C‐
Pier with a dock bar. He updated progress on WC advertising sales and said guide distribution was pretty much 
wrapped up. To get prepared for the upcoming visitors guide Burns needed to meet with Barban to make 
changes to the digital contract and send an email blast to Eastern Shore businesses. Burns also said he reviewed 
what was originally laid out in his position description and what he had actually been doing and had adjusted his 
position description. Burns also said his position had been budgeted at half time, but he had ended up spending 
two thirds time, in part to deal with accounting issues. These changes are reflected in his submitted budget.   
 

6. Operations Report 

 Chamberlain reported that Chocklett Press produced documentation that they corrected the visitors guide 
distribution error, so the commission has paid the bill in full.  Chamberlain also said she had been working with 
the Welcome Center to increase guide distribution to AAA. Chamberlain was also working with Thiry Tech to 
improve computer security on staff computers.  
 

7. Content Producer Report 

 Barban reported the top three Facebook posts of the month and explained how Facebook reach works. Barban 
also reported that she had been doing research about Facebook Power Editor, which is a tool that would allow 
Allison and Barban to customize Facebook ads more effectively. For example, Facebook posts could be A B 
tested. The analytics tools with the Facebook Power Editor were also more in depth. Barban also explained that 
Facebook offered free online courses about features like the Power Editor and that she and Allison could get 
certified through Facebook for free after taking courses.  
 

8.  Executive Director Report 

 Allison reported that hard copy guide requests were down, but online downloads were up. Unique website 
visitors were also up. Allison still couldn’t sign into Google Analytics. Traffic was also up on the Wordpress blog. 
Patrick Evans Hilton started a new culinary magazine called Virginia Eats, which would be a good new channel to 
get the word out about culinary, Allison said.  
 

9.  Old Business 

 Two companies were working on bids for the website project, Allison said. They were both Virginia companies. 
She was trying to find a third company to bid. Each team would come to give a presentation to the board. Allison 
was hoping to get the project done over the winter.  

 Allison started an industry relations email program to keep tourism partners in the loop, align partners to 
strategy and make sure that partners know what the commission is doing to help them. Allison sent the first 
industry email in April. The email had a 34 percent open rate and a 15 percent click through rate, both above 
average.  

 Burns said, according to the latest accounts receivable report, there were more than $33,000 in unpaid invoices. 
Since the first of May about $17,000 in payments had been received. Some visitor guide ads had yet to be 
invoiced. There were between $5,000 and $6,000 of invoices that were more than 90 days due. A number of 
businesses had invoices issued, but were never given reminders at the 60‐ or 90‐day mark.  
 

 
 
 
10. New Business 



3 
 

 Addison explained that when the new parallel tunnel went in at the Chesapeake Bay Bridge‐Tunnel, the 
restaurant and gift shop on Island Number  1 would close. The concessionaire would be setting up shop in a 
small room in the Welcome Center and Addison proposed the idea that the commission use a small portion of 
that retail space to sell items. It would be a partnership with the Chesapeake Bay Bridge‐Tunnel, Addison 
explained. Potts said he thought it would be fantastic. Gordy said she felt it was an opportunity. “Let’s market 
our shore,” Evans said. LeMond asked Addison what things she was looking at possibly selling in there. Addison 
recommended starting small. It would be about a three by three space. LeMond asked if the concessionaire 
would handle sales of the commission’s items and Addison said that was correct. Addison said T‐shirts would be 
great, the commission already had hats. She also said a lot of people asked for lapel pins and she suggested 
ornaments and charms for bracelets. She recommended starting a committee to explore items for sale. She 
volunteered to serve on it. LeMond asked Evans to help out and she agreed to. Potts volunteered himself and 
LeMond said of course Allison would also help. Davis said the woman in charge of The Bell Tower Welcome 
Center would be a good person to talk to about popular items. Mears said in the time she had been at the 
Welcome Center the two most requested items were post cards and magnets. Addison said that the CBBT would 
reach out to the current concessionaire and see what they had planned so the commission wouldn’t conflict 
with their items. 

 Top three priorities‐ LeMond said finishing the budget was one. Allison said the web development project was 
another. The last one was a plan for the guide.  
 

11.  Matters by Commissioners 

 Potts said he was just preparing for Memorial Day. Evans said she presented the industry email to the Cape 
Charles Town Council. She said she felt she was building a good relationship there. Burns asked if there would be 
a noon workshop in June and Allison said there would not. Addison announced that Northampton County’s 
Tourism Infrastructure Grant Program had just closed and 21 applications were received. Addison said Allison 
did a great job of getting the word out based on the number of applications that were received. There were 
eight applications in 2016 and over 20 this year. Addison said she enjoyed having commission staff visit the 
CBBT. Gordy thanked the staff and board for the flowers she received while she was recovering from surgery. 
She also reported that the joint resolution to increase the number of commissioners on the board is final.  
LeMond asked if Accomack would be advertising for the position soon. Gordy said Accomack doesn’t advertise. 
The matter is just discussed at a Board of Supervisors meeting and Gordy puts forth a name. LeMond said in 
Northampton they advertise and candidates send in an application. Allison said she realized that Staci Martin, 
the region’s development coordinator with VTC hadn’t really been in front of the board. She suggested asking 
Martin to make a presentation to the board during the June meeting at 1 p.m.  
 

12. Key Upcoming Dates 

 LeMond pointed out that the agenda was incorrect and the next meeting would be June 28 at 1 p.m.  

13. Adjournment  

 LeMond asked for a motion to adjourn. Gordy made a motion and Evans seconded it. The motion passed 
unanimously and the meeting was adjourned at 3:07 p.m.  

 

These minutes have been approved by: 
 
/ s / Larry LeMond  June 28, 2017     
______________________________________________________   _________________________________ 
Larry LeMond, Chairman                                                                             Date     


